
           
COMBINED SPECIAL MEETING/WORK SESSION AGENDA

 
CITY COUNCIL COMBINED SPECIAL
     MEETING/WORK SESSION
TUESDAY
SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

6:00 P.M.
 

  
SPECIAL MEETING

             
1. Call to Order

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and to
the general public that, at this work session, the City Council may vote to go into executive
session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with the City’s
attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.03(A)(3).

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Mission Statement
  

MISSION STATEMENT
 

The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life for all.
 

3. Roll Call
  
NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other technological means.

  
MAYOR EVANS
VICE MAYOR WHELAN
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER MCCARTHY
 

COUNCILMEMBER ODEGAARD
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

 

4. Public Participation 

Public Participation enables the public to address the council about items that are not on the
prepared agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning and at the
end of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both. Anyone wishing to
comment at the meeting is asked to fill out a speaker card and submit it to the recording clerk.
When the item comes up on the agenda, your name will be called. You may address the Council
up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments made during Public Participation.
Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone to have an opportunity to
speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting and wishing to
speak may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes to speak.

 

5.   Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2018-48:  A resolution of the City Council of



5.   Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2018-48:  A resolution of the City Council of
the City of Flagstaff, Arizona authorizing the settlement of the matter of Jaime Lynn Shurts v.
City of Flagstaff, et al., case No. CV-14-08121-PCT-DLR, currently pending in United States
District Court, District of Arizona.

 

  STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Read Resolution No. 2018-48 by title only

2) City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2018-48 by title only (if approved above)
3) Adopt Resolution No. 2018-48

 

6. Adjournment
 

WORK SESSION
 

1. Call to Order
 

2. Review of Draft Agenda for the October 2, 2018 City Council Meeting
 
Citizens wishing to speak on agenda items not specifically called out by the City Council may
submit a speaker card for their items of interest to the recording clerk. 

 

3.   Airport Master Plan Final Document
 

4.   Climate Action and Adaptation Plan: Draft Review #1
 

5.   Renewable Energy and Bike Share Update
 

6. Public Participation
 

7. Informational Items To/From Mayor, Council, and City Manager; future agenda item
requests.

 

8. Adjournment
 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall on                     ,
at                a.m./p.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the City Council with the City Clerk.

Dated this               day of                                       , 2018.

_________________________________________
Stacy Saltzburg, MMC, City Clerk                                  



  3.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Barney Helmick, Airport Director

Co-Submitter: Matt Quick, Coffman and Associates

Date: 08/16/2018

Meeting Date: 09/25/2018

TITLE:
Airport Master Plan Final Document

DESIRED OUTCOME:
Coffman and Associates have completed the Airport Master Plan (AMP) for the Flagstaff Airport. This
update to City Council on the completed AMP is a precursor to it coming back to Council in the near
future for formal consideration and approval.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The goal of an Airport Master Plan (AMP) is to provide a framework to guide future airport development
that will cost-effectively satisfy aviation demand while considering potential environmental and
socioeconomic impacts. An AMP identifies projects for the airport for the next 20 years. Importantly, it is
not a binding document, like the Flagstaff Regional Plan, because demands on an airport can change
rapidly and we are expected to meet those demands. The AMP provides flexibility and should be updated
when needed. The plan is broken into short, medium, and long-term projects. This process provides
support to the Federal Aviation Association (FAA) when projects are submitted at the Annual Airport
Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) meetings each year. The FAA encourages the completion of an
Airport Master Plan to help in the approval of FAA grants. The ACIP identifies requests for grant funding
for the next five years. Our ACIP is submitted into the National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems
(NPIAS) to assist national planning on the Federal level.

Over the last two years, Coffman and Associates assembled a Public Action Committee consisting of
various backgrounds, including members of our community, FAA, Arizona Department of Transportation
(ADOT), airport businesses, and City of Flagstaff staff. This group was presented with information in
four quarterly meetings to establish the foundation of the document found within the chapters of the final
Airport Master Plan. Four public meetings were held where we presented our chapter information and
gathered comments from the public. All feedback was taken into account in the completion of the
chapters. 

All information gathered was further reviewed and approved by City of Flagstaff staff, FAA planners in the
Phoenix Airport District Office, and Arizona Department of Transportation Intermodal Division (ADTID), to
establish a final draft. The final draft was presented to the Airport Commission at two separate
Commission meetings. At each meeting, the commissioners were asked to offer feedback to be
considered in the final draft.  

The AMP was funded by the U.S. Department of Transporation, Federal Aviation Administration, Arizona
Department of Transportation, Multimodal Planning Division Aeronautics Group, and the City of Flagstaff.



 

INFORMATION:
  
Council Goal: Support the airport with needed infrastructure upgrades in order to enhance our tenant
and patron experience as a well as additional airline attraction.

Flagstaff Regional Plan: Goal T.10. Strengthen and expand the role of the Flagstaff Pulliam Airport as
the dominant hub for passenger, air freight, public safety flights, and other services in northern Arizona.
Policy T.10.1 Maintain and expand the Flagstaff Pulliam Airport as an important link to the national air
transportation system.

Strategic Plan Team Flagstaff: Strategic Priority #3: Foster a resilient and economically prosperous city:

 

Attachments:  Airport Master Plan
Coffman and Associates Master Plan Presentation



Airport 
Master Plan

Final Document 

Barney Helmick, Airport Director



Airport Master Plan

Final Document
• Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)

•Airport Master Plans are strictly for planning purposes;

•Coffman and Associates put together a Public Action 
Committee;

•Held public meetings;

•Presented final document to the Airport Commission





WHY AN AIRPORT MASTER PLAN?
• Provide a visioning document to guide the City of Flagstaff and 

other decision makers regarding the future development of 
Flagstaff Airport over the next 20 years.

• Evaluate the Airport’s aviation demand potential.

• Address local, regional, and national changes in the aviation 
industry that could impact the development and priorities of the 
Airport in the years to come.



WHY AN AIRPORT MASTER PLAN?
• Identify and plan for potential capital projects well in advance so that 

proper coordination, approvals, financing, design, and construction can 
take place in a timely manner.

• Obtain approval of new aviation demand forecasts and an updated 
Airport Layout Plan (ALP).

• Conduct a new aeronautical survey that is uploaded into the FAA’s 
Airports GIS system.

• Increase stakeholder/public awareness of the Airport’s goals and 
objectives.



Aug. 2016

Dec. 2016



May 2017



Oct. 2017



METHODS OF STUDY INVOLVEMENT
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (PAC)

• Comprised of approximately 20 members representing various
entities (Airport, City, Governmental, Tenants, Economic
Development, etc.) with interest in the use and development of
the Airport.

• Provided input regarding the current and future use of the Airport.

• Four (4) meetings scoped during the course of the Master Plan
study process.



METHODS OF STUDY INVOLVEMENT
PUBLIC INFORMATION WORKSHOPS

• Allow the public an opportunity to obtain information, ask
questions, and provide input regarding the Master Plan.

• Three (3) workshops were conducted during the course of the
Master Plan study process.

MASTER PLAN STUDY WEBSITE

• http://flagstaff.airportstudy.com

http://flagstaff.airportstudy.com/


AIRPORT ROLE
FEDERAL LEVEL

• Non-hub commercial service airport

STATE LEVEL

• Commercial service airport

The Airport is also utilized by general aviation, air taxi, air cargo, and 
military operations.



Approved by the FAA 
for planning purposes.











TOTAL ECONOMIC BENEFITS: $200 mil.

Sources: Airport employer interviews, passenger surveys, based aircraft owner
Surveys, FAA, Flagstaff airport administration, IMPLAN input-output model. 



• 498 On-Airport Jobs

• $32.7 mil. Payroll

• $112.8 mil. Output

Commercial Service Airlines
Auto Rental & Concessions
Fixed Base Operator
Airport Administration
TSA, FAA, Other Agencies
Capital Improvement Projects
10 Non-Aviation Employers

DIRECT ON-AIRPORT BENEFITS: $112.8 mil.



QUESTIONS?





  4.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Jenny Niemann, Climate & Energy Specialist

Date: 09/19/2018

Meeting Date: 09/25/2018

TITLE:
Climate Action and Adaptation Plan: Draft Review #1

DESIRED OUTCOME:
This is an informational update to introduce the draft Climate Action and Adaptation Plan.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
To achieve the City Council’s goal of taking meaningful climate action, City staff have worked with
community members, technical experts, City staff, and a Steering Committee to develop the Flagstaff
Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (Plan).
 
Staff will review Plan contents over three City Council meetings.  A printed copy of the draft Plan will
provided to Council members on September 25 th to allow for ease of review and comment.
  
Work
Session September 25th October 9th October 23rd

Plan
content to
be reviewed

Plan foundations
 
Focus areas: 

Energy
Transportation
and Land Use

Focus areas: 

Natural Environment
Water Resources
Waste and Consumption
Economic Prosperity and
Recreation

Focus areas: 

Public Health
and Emergency
Services

 
Implementation
Strategy
 

 
 
Staff is seeking feedback and comments on the Plan from Councilmembers. Comments may be provided
through written comments on the printed Plan, via email, digital PDF comments, or at each work session.
Comments are requested by October 24 th, 2018.
 
Plan Contents: 

Introduction: 
Plan Overview
Overarching Vision
Overarching Goals and Targets
Benefits of a Plan
Climate and Equity



Climate Change and Flagstaff
Strategies and Actions: 

Natural Environment
Water Resources
Energy
Transportation and Land Use
Waste and Consumption
Public Health, Services, and Safety
Economic Prosperity and Recreation

Implementation Strategy 
City Staffing and Leadership
Operationalizing Equity
Accountability and Reporting
Funding
Community Action Guide
Outreach Strategy
Implementation Summary and Schedule

Community Engagement:
Staff will solicit community comments on the Draft through the following methods: 

Community Open House Series 
Thursday, October 4th
Monday, October 8th
Thursday, October 11th

Each Open House will be held 5:30 – 7:30 pm at the Murdoch Community Center. Each event will feature
a different theme and speaker each night. 

Coffee & Climate: Friday, October 19th
Flagstaff Community Forum: The Draft will be available for review and comments online.

INFORMATION:
Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
Council Goals:
Take meaningful climate change action.   
 
Regional Plan:
Goal E.1. Increase energy efficiency.
Goal E.2. Expand production and use of renewable energy.
Goal E&C.1. Proactively improve and maintain the region’s air quality.
Goal E&C.2 Reduce Greenhouse gas emissions.
Goal E&C.3 Strengthen community and natural environment resiliency through climate adaptation efforts.
Goal E&C.4. Integrate the best available science into all policies governing the use and conservation of
Flagstaff’s natural resources.
 
Financial Impact:
 
The Plan will recommend climate mitigation and preparedness projects, which will require a financial
investment by the City of Flagstaff.

Attachments:  Presentation
Climate Plan Draft





Climate Action and 
Adaptation Plan 

Review

Jenny Niemann

September 25, 2018



Plan Review 
Schedule

Work session dates:

• September 25th, 2018

•October 9th, 2018

•October 23rd, 2018

Presented for adoption:

•November 20th, 2018

2



Plan Review Topics

September 25th October 9th October 23rd

Plan foundations

Focus areas:
Energy

Transportation and
Land Use

Focus areas:
Natural Environment

Water Resources
Waste and Consumption
Economic Prosperity and 

Recreation

Focus areas:
Public Health and 

Emergency Services

Implementation 
Strategy

3



Agenda •Why we are here

•How we got here

•What the impacts will be

• Greenhouse gas emissions –
baseline and projection

• Focus Area Review



Why We Are 
Here

Council Goal:
Take meaningful climate action.

Why a Climate Action Plan?

• Climate Plans are a national best 
practice for climate action.

• This Plan will state the City’s policy                
goals related to climate change.

• It will establish a clear road map of 
priority actions and projects to 
address climate change.



Climate change poses risks to 
everything from our health
and our infrastructure 
to local ecosystems



Climate Change is Here
Average Annual Temperature: Coconino County: 1895 - 2017

1895 1915 1935 1955 1975 1995 2015

Te
m

p
er

at
u

re
 °

F

55

54

53

52

51

50



Compared to today, by 2050 we can expect:

8

Hotter temperatures

Lower snowpack

Less healthy forests

Drier conditions



Vulnerability Considerations

Public health, safety 

and emergency 

services

Forest health 
and wildfire

Land use, 

infrastructure 

and affordability

1
Water supply, 

quality and 

infrastructure

Tourism and 

recreation2 3

4 5



Why We Are 
Here:

Climate Plans 
have many 

benefits
Empowering citizens and 
supporting disadvantaged
communities.

Promoting healthier lifestyles 
and public health.

Improving quality of life, well-
being, and the local economy.

Enhancing local habitat and 
recreational opportunities.



Mitigation means considering our contributions

11

#2 
Powering 
Buildings

Transportation

Electricity

Waste Natural 
Gas#1 

Car Emissions

1%

5%

17%

21%

4%

11%

Transportation
41%

Residential 
Energy

17%

Industrial 
Energy

4%

Commercial 
Energy

21%

Water & Wastewater
21%

Solid Waste
11%

Process & Fugitive 
Emissions – 1%



Adaptation means preparing for what’s coming

To be prepared for change, we must ask ourselves:

 What are the areas of greatest vulnerability to the negative 
impacts of climate change?

 What populations are most vulnerable?

 What neighborhoods are most vulnerable?

 Where does Flagstaff already have adaptive capacity and 
community resiliency?

15



Why We Are 
Here:

Plan Objectives

Mitigation: Reduce Emissions 80% by 2050.

Adaptation: Prepare the community to be 
more resilient to climate change impacts.

Equity: Ensure costs and benefits of climate 
adaptation and mitigation are equitably 
distributed.

Objectives were identified through public 
engagement, technical and City stakeholder 
vetting processes.

15



How We Got 
Here

•Define:
• Risks and vulnerabilities
• Public concerns, areas for action

• Engage:
• Residents, staff and technical experts

•Develop:
• Goals
• Strategies and actions

•Analyze:

• Impacts

15



How We Got Here: Plan Timeline

Technical 
Analysis

Community 
Engagement

+

Strategy 
Development

Final Plan 
Draft

+

Public 
Review

Drafting

+ 

Impact 
Analysis

Fall-Winter
2017-2018

Fall
2018

Spring
2018

15

Summer
2018



How We Got 
Here

Community 
Conversations

• Six Open Houses

• Three online surveys

•A citizen Steering Committee

•Monthly Coffee and Climate chats

•Workshops with 30 City staff 
across divisions

•Partner meetings

15





Upcoming 
Community 

Conversations

October will present opportunities for 
community feedback on the Plan draft.

Three Open Houses

• Thursday, October 4th

• Monday, October 8th

• Thursday, October 11th

5:30 – 7:30 pm at the Murdoch Community Center
Different theme and speaker each night

Flagstaff Community Forum

Coffee & Climate: Friday, October 19th



What is the 
Potential for 

Impact?

To measure mitigation impact, we 
use a wedge analysis.

• This tool illustrates the effects of 
Plan policies on community 
greenhouse gas emissions.

• Emissions goal:

• 80% reduction from 2016 emissions 
levels, by 2050

• Result of current strategies:

• Estimated 60% reduction by 2050



Potential Impact: Flagstaff’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions

1,200,000

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

Where we are today

2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2050

MTCO2e

What’s our metric?

MTCO2e = Metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent 
MTCO2e is the standard measurement for 
community greenhouse gas emissions



Potential Impact: Flagstaff’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions

1,200,000

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

Business as Usual

2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2050

MTCO2e



1,200,000

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

CAAP implementation:
60% below 2016 baseline

Business as Usual

2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2050

Potential Impact: Flagstaff’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions

MTCO2e



1,200,000

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

CAAP implementation:
60% below 2016 baseline

Business as Usual

2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2050

Potential Impact: Flagstaff’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions

MTCO2e



1,200,000

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

Manage landfill emissions & reduce 
landfill waste

Promotion of active transportation

Adoption of zero-emissions vehicles

Industrial energy efficiency & 
renewables

Expand commercial renewable 
energy use

Commercial energy efficiency, zero 
net energy buildings

Residential renewable energy

Residential energy efficiency, zero 
net energy buildings

CAAP implementation:
60% below 2016 baseline

Business as Usual

2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2050

Potential Impact: Flagstaff’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions

MTCO2e



Focus Area Review



26

Energy

Waste & 
Consumption

Public Health
& Emergency 

Services

Economic 
Prosperity & 
Recreation

Transportation
& Land Use

Natural 
Environment

Water 
Resources

CAAP Focus Areas



27

Energy

Waste & 
Consumption

Public Health
& Emergency 

Services

Economic 
Prosperity & 
Recreation

Transportation
& Land Use

Natural 
Environment

Water 
Resources

CAAP Focus Areas



CAAP Focus Area Structure

Focus Area

- Goals
- Strategy one

- Priority actions

- Other actions

- Strategy two
- Priority actions

- Other actions



Energy Focus Area

Goal 1

Indicator

Reduce energy consumption and associated greenhouse gas 
emissions from heating, cooling, and powering buildings.

Greenhouse gas emissions from heating, cooling and powering 
buildings

Goals



Energy Focus Area

Goal 2 Increase renewable energy generation within the community and 
City municipal organization.

Indicators Proportion of municipal electricity use from renewables (%)

Proportion of community electricity use from renewables (%)

Goals



Energy Focus Area

Goal 3 Pursue a greater array of options for Flagstaff’s energy needs in 
order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Indicator Renewable energy generation capacity on residential and 
commercial buildings

Goals



Energy Focus Area

Strategies

Strategy E-1 Improve energy efficiency in all sectors.

Strategy E-2 Expand renewable energy generation and use.

Strategy E-3 Manage energy demand and consumption in residential, 
commercial, and industrial sectors, to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions.



Transportation and Land Use

Goals

Goal 1 Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from vehicle use.

Indicator Greenhouse gases from transportation in Flagstaff



Transportation and Land Use

Goals

Goal 2 Increase the proportion of vehicles that are electric or 
high-efficiency.

Indicators Number of permitted, publicly available electric vehicle 
chargers in the City

High-efficiency or alternative fuel vehicles in City fleet (%)



Transportation and Land Use

Goals

Goal 3 Prioritize transportation modes and infrastructure such as 
walking, biking, and public transit that promote public health, 
maintain Flagstaff’s clean air status, and reduce emissions.

Indicators Percent of trips made by public transit, biking, walking, or 

carpooling

Percent of City of Flagstaff employee commute trips made by 

public transit, biking, walking, or carpooling

Mileage of City bike lanes

Bike parking corrals



Transportation and Land Use

Goals

Goal 4 Promote vibrant and affordable neighborhoods and infill 
development in order to enable residents to easily walk, 
bus, or bicycle to meet basic daily needs; decrease the 
distance needed to drive to reach services, schools, parks, 
and businesses; and improve quality of life.

Indicators % of households living within ¾ mile of public transit

% of households living within a 10-minute walk of a 
neighborhood park



Transportation and Land Use

Goals

Goal 5 As population grows and visitation increases, ensure a 
higher proportion of Flagstaff workers can find adequate 
housing in the city.

Indicators Affordability index: average housing + transportation cost 
as a percentage of income.



Transportation and Land Use

Strategies

Strategy TLU-1 Encourage land use planning that minimizes the distance 
people have to travel by car and that increases community 
resiliency.

Strategy TLU-2 Expand renewable energy generation and use.

Strategy TLU-3 Support the use of clean, energy-efficient vehicles.



Transportation and Land Use

Strategies

Strategy TLU-4 Encourage efficient driving practices.

Strategy TLU-5 Manage transportation demand and reduce the frequency 
with which people drive alone.

Strategy TLU-6 Increase the supply of housing that is affordable to Flagstaff 
residents and located in areas that support biking, walking, 
and transit access to goods and services.



Next Steps

Comments on Plan October 9th October 23rd

Comments can be 
written, by email, or on 

the digital copy

Next meeting will begin 
with a recap and 
comments period

Community Open 
Houses

Focus areas:
Natural Environment

Water Resources
Waste and Consumption
Economic Prosperity and 

Recreation

Focus areas:
Public Health and 

Emergency Services

Implementation 
Strategy



Community 
Plan Review

October will present various opportunities 
for community feedback on the Plan draft.

- Three Open Houses

• Thursday, October 4th

• Monday, October 8th

• Thursday, October 11th

5:30 pm at the Murdoch Community Center
Different theme and speaker each night

- Flagstaff Community Forum

- Coffee & Climate: Friday, October 19th



DRAFT

CLIMATE ACTION & ADAPTATION PLAN 
CITY OF FLAGSTAFFSEPT 

2018



DRAFT

• 
• 
•

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/991/Agendas-Minutes
http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/ClimatePlan
http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/FCF


DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Acknowledgments

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  3

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
The goals, strategies, and indicators presented in this plan were 
developed through collaboration with residents of Flagstaff, City of 
Flagstaff staff, and City Council members.  

City Council Members

Coral Evans   Mayor 
Jamie Whelan  Vice-Mayor 
Celia Barotz   Council member 
Jim McCarthy  Council member 
Charlie Odegaard  Council member 
Scott Overton  Council member 
Eva Putzova   Council member

CAAP Steering Committee Members

Amanda Acheson  Sustainable Building Program, Coconino County 
Nicole Antonopoulos Sustainability Section, City of Flagstaff 
Jeff Bousson   American Conservation Experience 
Jeff Hall   Lowell Observatory 
Deb Harris   Southside Community Association 
Brad Hill   Water Services Division, City of Flagstaff
George Koch   Center for Ecosystem Science and Society, 
    Northern Arizona University
Dave McIntire  Community Investment Division, City of Flagstaff
Matthew Millar  Flagstaff Fire Department, City of Flagstaff 
Rick Moore   Grand Canyon Trust
Kate Morley   Northern Arizona Intergovernmental 
    Public Transportation Authority (NAIPTA) 
Amanda Ormond  The Ormond Group, LLC 
Brian Petersen  Geography, Planning, and Recreation, Northern   
    Arizona University; City of Flagstaff Sustainability   
    Commission
Daisy Purdy   Ethnic Studies and Applied Indigenous Studies, 
    Northern Arizona University 
Brian Wallace   Arizona Public Service Electric Company (APS) 
Jed Westover   Loven Contracting



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Acknowledgements

4  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

City of Flagstaff Staff
Technical Committee
Tiffany Antol   Planning and Development Services 
Nicole Antonopoulos Sustainability Section 
Andy Bertelsen  Public Works Division 
Larrea Cottingham  Sustainability Section 
Sara Dechter   Comprehensive Planning Program 
Betsy Emery   Sustainability Section 
Daniel Folke   Community Development Division 
Todd Hanson   Solid Waste Section 
Brad Hill   Water Services Division 
Jim Huchel   Water Reclamation Section 
Martin Ince   Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Carlton Johnson  Comprehensive Planning Program 
McKenzie Jones  Sustainability Section 
Tamara Lawless  Water Conservation Program
Dylan Lenzen   Sustainability Section 
Gino Leoni   Parks Section
David McIntire  Economic Community Investment Division
Jennifer Mikelson  Housing Section
Matthew Millar  Flagstaff Fire Department 
Shawn Mullaney  Parks Section 
Jenny Niemann  Sustainability Section 
Amy Palmer   Building Safety Program 
Alaxandra Pucciarelli Current Planning Program
Amanda Richardson  Stormwater Section 
Sam Salgado   Sustaintability Section 
Rebecca Sayers  Parks and Recreation
Kevin Treadway  City Manager’s Office 
Ryan Turley   Climate Intern, Sustainability Section
Robert Wallace  Sustainability Section 
Rebecca Wagner  Sustainability Section 
David Wessel   Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Erin Young   Water Resources Section

Prepared for the Flagstaff Community by 
Cascadia Consulting Group
Andrea Martin  Senior Associate
Nora Nickum   Director
Olivia Ashmoore   Project Assistant

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Sincere gratitude to the Flagstaff community for their 
time and dedication to this process.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Table of Contents

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  5

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction

13

Implementation Strategy

95

The Introduction explains why 
and how the Climate Action and 
Adaptation Plan was developed 
and provides foundational 
information that informed the 
plan’s goals, strategies, and 
actions.

Plan Overview  14

Overarching Vision 18

Overarching Goals  19 
and Targets

The Benefits of a  21 
Climate Action and 
Adaptation Plan 

Climate and Equity 28

Climate Change  29 
and Flagstaff

The Implementation Strategy 
section details steps the City 
and community will take 
to ensure successful plan 
implementation.

CIty Staffing  96 
and Leadership 

Operationalizing 99 
Equity

Accountability  101 
and Reporting

Funding  103

Community Action 106 
Guide

Outreach Strategy 108

Implementation  110 
Summary and Schedule

Strategies and Actions

44

The Strategies and Actions 
section presents the near- and 
long-term actions for meeting 
plan goals, organized by focus 
area. 

Natural Environment   45

Water Resources   54

Energy    59

Transportation    67 
and Land Use

Waste and Consumption 77

Public Health, Services   84 
and Safety

Economic Prosperity  t89 
and Recreation

Appendix
Sources cited in the Plan

129



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Table of Contents

6  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

What is Flagstaff going to do about it?

Climate change will affect 
all facets of the Flagstaff 
community. Anticipated 
impacts in Flagstaff 
include:

This Climate Action and Adaptation Plan will guide the Flagstaff community in 
preparing for climate risks, reducing greenhouse gas emissions, and protecting the 
wellbeing of residents for decades to come.

The climate is changing. 

OUR GOALS
Reduce greenhouse 

gas emissions
Make sure that our

neighborhoods, 
resources

and economy 
are more resilient 

to climate change impacts.

Address climate change
impacts in a manner that

prioritizes those 
most impacted.by 80%

by 2050, compared to 
the 2016 emissions baseline.

To meet these goals, we are
taking action across sectors:

equity considerations 
will guide Plan implementation 
and ensure that participation in

climate action is accessible to the
entire Flagstaff community.

WATER ENERGY TRANSPORTATION 
& LAND USE

WASTE &
CONSUMPTION

PUBLIC HEALTH
& SAFETY

PROSPERITY &
RECREATION

9
years
5

The Climate Action and 
Adaptation Plan will be

updated every

Greater risk 
of wildfires 
in our local 

forests

More severe 
drought 
conditions

Increased risk of 
heat-related and 
mosquito-borne 

illnesses

Longer 
and hotter 
summers

Less 
snowpack



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Executive Summary

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  7

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
WHY DO WE NEED A PLAN?

Climate change is bringing changes in temperature, snowpack, water 
availability, and wildfire risk to Flagstaff. These changes threaten 
Flagstaff’s natural resources, economy, infrastructure, and quality of life. 
This Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (Plan) is a strategic roadmap 
to guide the Flagstaff community in preparing for climate risks, 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions, and protecting the wellbeing of 
residents for decades to come.

CLIMATE CHANGE RISKS
Anticipated climate change impacts in Flagstaff include the following:

• Longer and hotter summers
• Difficulty for sensitive populations and those without air conditioning
• Increased risk of disease or illness from mosquitoes and other pests

Hotter temperatures

• More severe drought conditions as temperatures rise
• Lower water quality of reservoirs

Drier conditions

• Increased wildfire risk for local forests
• Increased damage from forest pests due to hotter temperatures and 

drought-stressed trees

Less healthy forests

Less snowpack
• More rainfall instead of snowfall
• Increased flooding of infrastructure and buildings from more intense 

rainstorms
• Increased risk of post-wildfire floods



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Executive Summary

8  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

FLAGSTAFF’S CONTRIBUTION TO CLIMATE CHANGE THROUGH 
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS
Transportation and building energy consumption combined make up nearly 90% of Flagstaff’s greenhouse 
gas emissions. Residential-owned vehicles account for most of the transportation emissions. The 
consumption of electricity and use of natural gas in homes, businesses, and industrial buildings account 
for most of the energy emissions. Solid waste disposal, water and wastewater treatment, and fugitive 
emissions (e.g., from leaks) make up relatively smaller portions of Flagstaff’s emissions.

Forecasts estimate that Flagstaff’s overall emissions will increase 34% by 2050 compared to a 2016 baseline 
in the absence of climate action. This Climate Action and Adaptation Plan is designed to get us to a more 
sustainable future with lower emissions.

DEVELOPMENT OF THIS PLAN
This Plan was written with the community, for the community, through an extensive year-long community 
and stakeholder engagement process that included:

 » Six public open houses attended by over 300 community members.
 » Three online surveys taken by over 250 community members.
 » Meetings with local organizations and neighborhood groups and collaborations with Coconino 

County representatives.
 » A 15-member citizen steering committee that provided input and feedback throughout the planning 

process.
 » Workshops and meetings with technical experts, including 30 City staff across divisions, to vet and 

evaluate plan targets, strategies, and actions. 



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Executive Summary

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  9

VISION FOR 2050

Our vision for the future is that the Flagstaff community proactively 
preserves the natural environment, works towards carbon neutrality, 
and enhances the quality of life for all residents while ensuring equity, 
self-sufficiency, and climate resiliency. 

OVERARCHING GOALS
This Plan is designed to achieve the following climate goals: 

» Reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 80% by 2050, compared to the 2016 emissions baseline. We
have interim targets of a 15% reduction by 2025 and a 30% reduction by 2030.

» Prepare the city’s neighborhoods, systems, and resources to be more resilient to climate change
impacts

» Address climate change in a manner that prioritizes those most impacted and ensures that the costs
and benefits of climate adaptation and mitigation are equitably distributed.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Executive Summary

10  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

Natural Environment 
STRATEGY 1. Protect existing forests, resources, and meaningful open spaces. 

STRATEGY 2. Improve forest management through collaboration with regional partners.  

STRATEGY 3. Educate the public on forest health risk and fire prevention.  

STRATEGY 4. Encourage diverse native plant ecosystems in the built environment. 

STRATEGY 5. Proactively manage for expected ecosystem transitions, including the potential 
threats to ponderosa pine forests.  

Water Resources 
STRATEGY 1. Improve water infrastructure and expand water reuse. 

STRATEGY 2. Improve ecosystem management for protection of water resources. 

STRATEGY 3. Continue to support water conservation efforts across the Flagstaff community. 

STRATEGY 4. Maximize passive and active community rainwater infiltration. 

Energy 
STRATEGY 1. Improve energy efficiency in all sectors. 

STRATEGY 2. Expand renewable energy generation and use. 

STRATEGY 3. Manage energy demand and consumption in residential, commercial, and 
industrial sectors, to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

Transportation and Land Use 
STRATEGY 1. Advance land use planning that minimizes the distance people have to travel by 

car and that increases community resiliency. 

STRATEGY 2. Prioritize, incentivize, and promote transportation by biking, walking, and 
transit. 

STRATEGY 3. Support the use of clean, energy-efficient vehicles. 

STRATEGY 4. Encourage efficient driving practices. 

STRATEGY 5. Manage transportation demand and reduce the frequency with which people 
drive alone. 

STRATEGY 6. Increase the supply of housing that is affordable to Flagstaff residents and 
located in areas that support biking, walking, and transit access to goods and 
services. 

STRATEGIES
This Plan recommends the following strategies to achieve City of Flagstaff’s overarching climate goals. 



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Executive Summary

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  11

Waste and Consumption 
STRATEGY 1. Increase waste diversion. 

STRATEGY 2. Support sustainable and accessible production and consumption. 

STRATEGY 3. Optimize collection and disposal systems to minimize greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

STRATEGY 4. Improve data collection on consumption, waste, and diversion. 

STRATEGY 5. Increase local food production through partnerships and policies. 

Public Health, Services, Facilities and Safety 
STRATEGY 1. Identify and target support for at-risk populations. 

STRATEGY 2. Adequately fund services for disaster preparedness. 

STRATEGY 3. Increase community awareness of climate change risks and impacts and 
improve community capacity to respond to new or expanding risks to public 
health. 

STRATEGY 4. Improve the resiliency of public infrastructure. 

STRATEGY 5. Prepare for changing risks to public health due to climate change. 

Economic Prosperity and Recreation 
STRATEGY 1. Build an economy that reduces emissions and can effectively adapt as the 

climate changes. 

STRATEGY 2. Protect natural areas and ecosystem services that are most vulnerable to the 
impacts of increased visitation and climate change. 

STRATEGY 3. Plan for changes to recreation and respond to the impacts of climate change 
on current Parks and Recreation facilities and operations.

 
 

ANTICIPATED EMISSIONS REDUCTIONS
The suite of strategies, taken together, will result in a 60% reduction in community greenhouse gas 
emissions. While this falls short of the 80% reduction goal, it represents significant progress and an 
important first step for climate action and adaptation by the City of Flagstaff. The Plan represents an 
ongoing and iterative process; it will be updated and adjusted in regular increments as the 80% goal and 
target date nears.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Executive Summary

12  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

IMPLEMENTATION
The Flagstaff City Council will be responsible for oversight of the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan and 
will make policy decisions to support implementation of the Plan. City staff will integrate Plan goals and 
strategies into City operations and decision-making and report back on progress.

Achievement of our climate goals will require that staff throughout the City of Flagstaff, community 
members, business leaders, as well as students and institutions all take action. City staff will work to 
support community members in taking climate action and involve residents in implementation decisions.

Because climate change most negatively affects vulnerable communities, implementation of this Plan 
will strive to advance equity while addressing climate change. Nine equity considerations will guide the 
implementation of climate actions and ensure that participation in climate action is accessible to the 
entire Flagstaff community. Staff will work to establish partnerships with underserved communities, build 
capacity for climate leadership across the community, and involve diverse community voices from the start 
of any program. 

FUTURE UPDATES
The 2018 Climate Action and Adaptation Plan represents the beginning of an ongoing and iterative 
conversation between the City of Flagstaff and the community it serves. The City will work with the 
community, local partners, and technical experts to update the Plan every five years, so that we can 
respond to changing circumstances and learn from implementation challenges and successes.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  13

INTRODUCTION

With clean air, a cooler climate, and 
beautiful natural areas, Flagstaff is a 
great place to live and visit. Residents 
and visitors enjoy the many amenities 

Flagstaff has to offer—from the Flagstaff Urban 
Trails System (FUTS) of bike and pedestrian paths 
to the Grand Canyon to the unique biodiversity of 
surrounding forests. Home to Northern Arizona 
University and world-class research centers, 
Flagstaff residents are informed, passionate, and 
engaged in issues concerning their community.

Global greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions are 
changing the climate in ways that threaten 
Flagstaff’s unique amenities and way of life. 
Projected changes in temperature, snowpack, 
water availability, and wildfire risk exacerbate 
existing challenges and introduce new challenges 
to Flagstaff’s natural resources, economy, 
infrastructure systems, and quality of life. While 
we can work to reduce Flagstaff’s contributions to 
those climate, preparing for inevitable impacts of 
these changes in Flagstaff is necessary.

By taking action now to reduce the community’s 
emissions and prepare for climate risks, the City 
of Flagstaff can better protect the wellbeing of its 
residents for decades to come. There are many 
community benefits to climate action, while the 
cost of inaction is incredibly high.

This Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (Plan) 
creates a vision and strategic roadmap for the 
Flagstaff community to address these risks by 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and adapting 
to a changing climate. It was written by the 
community, for the community—building on our 
knowledge of projected local climate changes, 
sources of greenhouse gas emissions, and 
community vulnerabilities, priorities, ideas and 
concerns. It focuses on activities that achieve the 
greatest emission reductions or do the most to 
increase our community preparedness and in the 
most cost-effective and equitable manner. The 
entire community—Flagstaff businesses, residents, 
and visitors—all have a role in both implementing 
the Plan and enjoying its benefits.

Climate Mitigation  
versus Climate Adaptation
Climate “mitigation” refers to actions 
that reduce greenhouse gas emissions, 
which contribute to climate change.

Climate “adaptation” refers to actions 
that increase the ability to withstand, 
respond to, or cope with climate change 
impacts. 



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

14  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

INTRODUCTION

Natural
Environment

Water
Resources

Energy

 

Plan Overview
The Plan presents goals, targets, strategies, and actions for mitigating 
and adapting to climate change. It is organized into seven focus areas:

Natural Environment refers to 
ecosystem health, environmentally 
sensitive lands, plants, soils, and 
wildlife in the context of natural 
systems worthy of conservation 
and protection. This focus area 
also includes open spaces that 
protect environmental quality and 
biodiversity, support tourism, and 
protect historic and cultural resources.

Water Resources refers to surface 
water, groundwater, and reclaimed 
water that serves our residential, 
commercial, industrial, recreational, 
and agricultural needs. It includes 
100-year water supply planning, 
diversification of the water supply 
portfolio, and conservation to sustain 
our water supplies and quality for 
future generations.

Energy refers to community energy 
consumption and efficiency, clean 
and renewable energy sourcing, and 
a more climate-resilient energy grid. 
It includes strategies for renewable 
energy sources and efficient building 
standards.

Transportation and Land Use 
refers to the form and function of 
transportation systems, including ways 
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
through design and clean and efficient 
transportation systems.

Waste and Consumption 
refers to the lifecycle of 
goods and materials, 
including opportunities 
to reduce emissions 
associated with 
manufacturing, use, and 
disposal.

Public Health, Services, 
Facilities, and Safety 
refers to facilities and 
services focused on 
community health, safety, 
security, and emergency 
response.

Waste and 
Consumption

Economic Prosperity 
and Recreation refers 
to community and 
economic health, including 
opportunities to reduce 
emissions and prepare the 
community’s tourism and 
recreational sectors for 
climate change.

 
 

Economic 
Prosperity and 

Recreation

Transportation 
and Land Use

Public Health, 
Services, Facilties, 

and Safety



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  15

For each focus area, this document tells the story of Flagstaff’s climate 
goals, related activities, strategies, and actions for achieving those 
goals. The strategies and actions are presented in order of priority 
as articulated by the Flagstaff community, City staff, and Steering 
Committee. Each focus area is organized in the following manner:

Goals, Targets, and Indicators provide metrics for assessing progress 
towards achieving the focus area vision.

Strategies represent thematic groupings of actions that all work toward a 
specific goal. Strategies within each focus area are ordered by priority.

Priority Actions are actions within a strategy that were prioritized 
from a broader set of potential actions through an evaluation of cost, 
effectiveness, feasibility, and co-benefits. These actions are ordered from 
highest to lowest priority as identified through the evaluation process, and 
these actions are also included in the implementation plan.

Other Actions are opportunities that were identified as potential actions 
but were not considered high-priority through the community and 
stakeholder engagement process. These actions will be revisited in future 
plan updates.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

16  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

A LIVING DOCUMENT

To ensure that the Plan reflects the voice of the Flagstaff community, 
the plan was developed through an extensive year-long community and 
stakeholder engagement process that included:

Six public open houses, attended by over 300 community members. 

Three online surveys, taken by over 250 community members. 

Regular meetings with a 15-member citizen steering committee, who 
provided input and feedback throughout the planning process.

Workshops and meetings with technical experts, including 30 City staff 
across divisions to vet and evaluate plan targets, strategies, and actions.

Meetings with local organizations and neighborhood groups and 
collaborations with Coconino County representatives.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  17

Strategies in this plan were developed to be actionable, achievable, and 
impactful. Actions focus on mechanisms or “levers” that the City or 
community can use to affect change, including:

Inspiring voluntary action through information, outreach, 
and technical assistance.

Sending price signals to encourage or discourage behaviors.

Making public investments to visibly demonstrate government 
commitment to climate action and influence decision-making.

Mandating change to stimulate comprehensive, community-
wide adjustment.

This foundational Plan represents the beginning of an ongoing and iterative conversation 
between the City of Flagstaff and the community it serves. The goals, strategies, and 
actions presented herein reflect the community’s priorities and needs as articulated 
by City staff, residents, and organizations who participated in the plan development 
process. As the community’s priorities shift, technologies change, and new knowledge 
is revealed, the Plan will undergo a continual process of monitoring, evaluation, and 
evolution to keep pace with changing needs. 



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

18  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

Overarching Vision

The Flagstaff community 
proactively preserves the natural 
environment, works towards 
carbon neutrality, and enhances 
the quality of life for all residents 
while ensuring equity, self-
sufficiency, and climate resiliency.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  19

Overarching Goals and Targets
The Climate Action and Adaptation Plan centers on achievement of the 
following overarching goals.

REDUCE Flagstaff’s contribution to climate change by reducing community 
greenhouse gas emissions.

PREPARE the city’s communities, systems, and resources to be more 
resilient to climate change impacts.

ADDRESS climate change in a manner that prioritizes those most impacted 
and ensures the costs and benefits of climate adaptation and mitigation are 
equitably distributed.

1
2
3



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

20  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Targets
The Climate Action and Adaptation Plan sets a overarching and per-
capita reduction target for community greenhouse gas emissions.

OVERARCHING TARGET: An 80% reduction in GHG emissions by 2050 compared to 2016 levels.
PER-CAPITA TARGET: An equivalent reduction to the overarching target given anticipated population 
growth. This reduction equates to an 85% reduction in GHG emissions by 2050 compared to 2016 levels. 
The per-capita target needs to be more ambitious (85% per person) than the community-wide target for 
an 80% reduction from baseline because of estimated population growth.

Key Performance Indicator Baseline (2016) 2025 Target 2030 Target 2050 Target

Communitywide 
greenhouse gas 
emissions

15% reduction 30% reduction 80% reduction

787,315
(MTCO2e*)

669,218
(MTCO2e)

551,121
(MTCO2e)

157,463
(MTCO2e)

Per-capita 
communitywide 
greenhouse gas 
emissions

25% reduction 41% reduction 85% reduction

11.0
(MTCO2e / person)

8.3
(MTCO2e / person)

6.5
(MTCO2e / person)

1.7
(MTCO2e / person)

Estimated population 13% growth 18% growth 33% growth

71,617 81,044 84,795 95,088

15%
Reduction by 2025

30%
Reduction by 2030

80%
Reduction by 2050

Reductions needed to meet goals

Expected greenhouse gas emissions

2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 205020202015

1.2 M

1.0 M

800 K

600 K

400 K

200 KCo
m

m
un

ity
w

id
e 

G
H

G
 E

m
is

si
on

s 
(M

TC
O

₂e
) 

*Metric ton carbon dioxide equivalent (MTCO2e) serves as a standard unit for 
greenhouse gases, indicating the impact of different greenhouse gases in 
terms of the amount of CO2 that would create the same amount of warming. 
For example, methane has 28 times the impact of carbon dioxide in the 
atmosphere, so 1 metric ton of methane would equal 28 MTCO2e. 



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  21

Benefits of a Climate Action and Adaptation Plan
Implementation of the Flagstaff Climate Action and Adaptation Plan will 
realize many benefits beyond addressing climate change.

In addition to the societal benefits from equitable 
and inclusive climate action, many actions in 
the Flagstaff Climate Action and Adaptation Plan 
will enhance quality of life for Flagstaff residents. 

For example, the introduction of energy-saving 
equipment and behaviors not only addresses 
climate goals but can also lower energy costs. This 
plan prioritizes these “win-win” solutions that 
benefit both the climate and other facets of the 
Flagstaff community. Some co-benefits include the 
following:

Support for low-income and disadvantaged 
communities. When implemented carefully and 
correctly, actions such as local green job training 
and subsidy programs for energy efficiency 
upgrades can be especially helpful for low-income 
and disadvantaged communities.

Public health. Some actions that reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions also promote healthier 
lifestyles, such as supporting more people walking 
and biking and eating less carbon-intensive foods.

Quality of life and well-being. Many climate 
actions can also improve quality of life for Flagstaff 
residents, such as benefits from green jobs to the 
local economy and creation of more comfortable 
and inviting homes through energy efficiency 
improvements.

Local habitat, recreation, and aesthetic. In 
addition to enhancing ecosystem resilience, 
minimizing heat impacts, and storing carbon, 
actions that improve natural habitat can also 
enhance natural beauty and provide recreation 
opportunities for visitors and residents.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

22  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

COSTS OF INACTION

This Plan makes an investment in the 
preparation and adaptation of the entire 
Flagstaff community to climate change.
Preparation is far less costly than response. 

While we do not know the exact cost of not taking 
action now, we can estimate. For example, the 
Flagstaff Watershed Protection project—a local 
example of a climate adaptation project—is funded 
by a $10 million bond and is expected to prevent 
$573 million to $1.2 billion in costs associated 
with expected future fires and resulting floods.1 
Additionally, 2017 was the most expensive disaster 
year in U.S. history, costing nearly 400 billion 
dollars.2 We also know that disasters like those 
experienced in 2017 are expected to continue and 
strengthen in the future.3 

1 Flagstaff Watershed Protection Project. http://
flagstaffwatershedprotection.org  (23 May 2018). 
2 Umair Irfan and Brian Resnick. “Megadisasters devastated 
America in 2017. And they’re only going to get worse.” 
Vox. 26 March 2018. https://www.vox.com/energy-and-
environment/2017/12/28/16795490/natural-disasters-2017-
hurricanes-wildfires-heat-climate-change-cost-deaths (23 May 
2018).
3 “Extreme Weather and Climate Change.” Center for Climate 
and Energy Solutions. https://www.c2es.org/content/extreme-
weather-and-climate-change (23 May 2018). 

In addition to the cost savings of preparation, many 
programs and actions in this plan also have a high 
return on investment. For example, renewable 
energy is now cost-competitive with non-renewable 
energy and brings other benefits to the community 
such as reduced emissions of dangerous air 
pollutants, reduced reliance on imported energy, 
and reduced sensitivity to price fluctuations. When 
these other societal benefits are taken into account, 
the return on investment is even higher.

THE SOCIAL COST OF CARBON

Purchasing and burning fossil fuels 
contributes to impacts that have real 
economic consequences, such as 
infrastructure damage from flooding, fires,  

or extreme storms. Despite the very real nature of 
these costs, the market price of fossil fuels does 
not include these societal cost “externalities.” The 
failure of markets to account for climate risk in 
the price of fossil fuels has spurred research into 
quantifying the economic impact of each new 
metric ton of carbon emitted into the atmosphere. 
This estimate is called the social cost of carbon. 
The social cost of carbon is a policy tool to estimate 
future economic impacts of climate change and 
allow entities to calculate the actual costs and 
benefits of various options to guide decision-
making. 

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
estimates a range of possible social costs of carbon 
depending on the year and discount rate applied 
to the future. These range from $36 per metric ton 
of carbon dioxide equivalent (MTCO2e) in 2015 
to $69 per MTCO2e in 2050.1 However, the EPA 
acknowledges current modeling does not include 
all important damages; estimates by other agencies 
and researchers are far higher. Some recent 
estimates have determined the social cost of carbon 
could be as high as $100-$200 per MTCO2e.2

1 U.S. EPA. “The Social Cost of Carbon.” 2017
2  Nwuccitelli, Dana. “Republican hearing calls for a lower carbon 
pollution price. It should be much higher.” The Guardian. 1 March 
2017. www.theguardian.com/environment/climate-consensus-97-
per-cent/2017/mar/01/republican-hearing-calls-for-a-lower-carbon-
pollution-price-it-should-be-much-higher  (3 July 2017).



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  23

BUILDING ON A FOUNDATION

Flagstaff has already made notable progress toward reducing both its 
community emissions and its vulnerability to the potential impacts of 
climate change. 
Flagstaff has a variety of plans, policies, programs, and studies that are connected to the needs 
and solutions for addressing climate change issues and challenges. Some things the community 
is already doing to address climate change include the following:

The City regularly tracks and reports on its greenhouse gas emissions 
inventory.1 

The Greater Flagstaff Forest Partnership, an alliance of environmental, 
governmental, and business organizations, works on forest ecosystem 
restoration in and around Flagstaff.

The community participates in ongoing invasive weed removal events on 
Flagstaff Open Space properties.

The City of Flagstaff has been using reclaimed water for irrigation since 
1971, expanding  reclaimed water use to offset potable water use by 20%.

Flagstaff voters approved a $10M bond to support the Flagstaff 
Watershed Protection Project - a partnership effort between the State, 
City, and Coconino National Forest to reduce the risk of devastating 
wildfire and post-fire flooding in the Rio de Flag and Upper Lake Mary 
watersheds. 

The City of Flagstaff provides home energy efficiency, water efficiency, and 
rainwater harvesting tank rebates for residents.

1 Reports can be found on the City website at this link: http://flagstaff.az.gov/3625/Greenhouse-Gas-Emissions-Reporting. More 
information on other City sustainability activities can be found here: http://www.flagstaff.az.gov/1605/Sustainability-Section. 



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

24  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

The City’s Water Services Division has conducted energy audits of their 
water and wastewater treatment facilities to identify ways to reduce 
energy consumption and has been proactive at replacing aging inefficient 
equipment with more energy efficient equipment.

Several local companies are installing residential and commercial rooftop 
solar systems throughout Flagstaff.

In 2018, a six-month pilot program brought bike sharing to the City of 
Flagstaff and the Northern Arizona University campus, making bike trips 
possible for more residents.

The City is exploring an adaptive reuse incentive program to encourage 
infill and the reuse of existing structures.

The Azulita Project, a local non-profit, is partnering with local businesses 
to eliminate the use of plastic straws and other single-use plastic.

The Flagstaff Master Recycler program provides training to community 
members on waste prevention and composting practices. 

The Ready Set Go campaign encourages residents to be more informed 
about potential emergencies and prepared to evacuate.

Through the Woods Watch program, the City of Flagstaff, Coconino County 
and the U.S. Forest Service partner with residents to monitor for careless 
fire behavior on forested lands to protect the community from wildfire.

The Sustainable Economic Development Initiative promotes sustainable 
economic prosperity in Northern Arizona. 

The Innovate Waste Challenge is incentivizing businesses to discover new 
ways to convert waste into marketable products.

The Mountain Line bus system has recently added a weekend bus route 
to Snowbowl to serve both residents and tourists who ski and snowboard.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  25

Relationship to Other City Plans
The list below presents other City plans that inform or could be informed by the Climate Action 
and Adaptation Plan. Some of these documents already emphasize climate solutions described 
in this plan, while others will need to be updated to integrate climate change and climate action. 
Where linkages are clear, this plan highlights “levers” in existing plans and programs and brings 
them together to address a common goal.

The Rethink Waste Plan outlines initiatives toward achieving the City’s 
waste prevention and recycling goals.

The High Occupancy Housing Plan encourages higher-density housing 
that is more compatible with existing neighborhoods.

The City is currently developing a Water Conservation Strategic Plan to 
set water conservation targets and identify and prioritize actions to 
achieve those targets.

The Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 presents a comprehensive, long-term 
plan for the Flagstaff community.

The Sustainability Section Strategic Plan establishes detailed strategies 
for accomplishing sustainability program area goals.

The Management Plan for Legally-Designated Open Space Properties 
seeks to restore watershed health, forest structure, native plant 
communities, and rare habitat types, among other goals. 

The Coconino County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
includes an assessment of drought, flood, and wildfire risks and strategies 
to reduce those risks.

The Coconino County Emergency Operations Plan is a  guide for 
disaster response activities and includes hazards such as floods, flash 
floods, severe weather, and wildfire. 

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/2945/The-Plan
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/4012/Water-Conservations-Strategic-Plan
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/57355/Sustainability-Section-2018-2020-Strategic-Plan?bidId=
https://flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/51727/Management-Plan-for-Legally-Designated-Open-Space-Properties?bidId=
http://www.coconino.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/8916/Coconino-County-MJMHMP_20101?bidId=
http://www.coconino.az.gov/207/Emergency-Managment
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/55962/Rethink-Waste-Plan_Final
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/56762/Flagstaff-High-Occupancy-Housing-Specific-Plan---Final-Draft?bidId=


DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

26  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF’S EXPANDING COMMITMENT TO 
CLIMATE ACTION

This Climate Action and Adaptation Plan builds on a foundation of 
climate leadership by the Flagstaff City Council. A few significant 
highlights:

2006 Through Resolution 2006-59, the City of Flagstaff adopted the U.S. Mayors 
Climate Protection Agreement.

2007 The City of Flagstaff Sustainability Section was established.

The Sustainability Commission was established by Ordinance 2007-27.
2008 Resolution 2008-32 required all new municipal buildings be constructed to earn a 

minimum of Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED silver certification.
2010 Resolution 2010-16 committed the City to increase energy efficiencies and renewable 

energy production and purchase for City facilities and properties.
2012 Resolution 2012-22 adopted the 2012 City of Flagstaff Resiliency and Preparedness 

Study.
2014 Resolution 2014-09 requires all occupied City-owned new construction, major 

renovations and large additions to achieve LEED, Green Globes, or Living Building 
Challenge certification.

2017 City Council set a 2017-2019 goal to take meaningful climate action.

Flagstaff became Arizona’s first city to call for national revenue-neutral carbon fee 
and dividend legislation, urging the U.S. Congress to assess a steadily increasing fee 
on carbon at the point of fossil fuel extraction; return the net revenue to American 
households on an equitable basis; and incorporate a border adjustment that levels the 
playing field for trade with countries without an equivalent tax.

Mayor Coral Evans joined with over 200 other U.S. Mayors in committing to adopt, 
honor, and uphold the landmark Paris Climate Agreement.

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/9327/US-Mayors-2006-59?bidId=
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/50432/Sustainability?bidId=
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/43997/Sustainable-Building-Resolution-2014-09?bidId=
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/11287/07E?bidId=
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/44458/Resolution-2012-22-resiliency-and-preparedness-signed-version?bidId=
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/DocumentCenter/View/43997/Sustainable-Building-Resolution-2014-09?bidId=
https://11bup83sxdss1xze1i3lpol4-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/flagstaff-cfd-resolution.pdf


DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  27

Ties to the Regional Plan
This document builds upon goals outlined in the current Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 and informs potential 
priority areas for the next regional plan update. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions and adapting to 
climate change will improve the local economy, support public health, and benefit ecosystems. There is 
strong overlap between the goals of the Regional Plan and the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan.  
The following Regional Plan goals are furthered by the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan strategies:

Goal E&C.2. Reduce greenhouse gas emissions.
Goal E&C.3. Strengthen community and natural environment resiliency through climate adaptation efforts.
Goal E&C.6. Protect, restore, and improve ecosystem health and maintain native plant and animal 
community diversity across all land ownerships in the Flagstaff region.
Goal E&C.10. Protect indigenous wildlife populations, localized and larger-scale wildlife habitats, ecosystem 
processes, and wildlife movement throughout the planning area.
Goal OS.1. The region has a system of open lands, such as undeveloped natural areas, wildlife corridors 
and habitat areas, trails, accesses to public lands, and greenways to support the natural environment that 
sustains our quality of life, cultural heritage, and ecosystem health.
Goal WR.1. Maintain a sustainable water budget incorporating regional hydrology, ecosystem needs, and 
social and economic well-being.
Goal WR.2. Manage a coordinated system of water, wastewater, and reclaimed water utility service facilities 
and resources at the City level and identify funding to pay for new resources.
Goal WR.5 Manage watersheds and stormwater to address flooding concerns, water quality, environmental 
protections, and rainwater harvesting.
Goal WR.6 Protect, preserve, and improve the quality of surface water, groundwater, and reclaimed water in 
the region.
Goal LU.8. Balance future growth with available water resources.
Goal E.1. Increase energy efficiency.
Goal E.2. Expand production and use of renewable energy.
Goal LU.1. Invest in existing neighborhoods and activity centers for the purpose of developing complete, and 
connected places.
Goal LU.2. Develop Flagstaff’s Greenfields in accordance with the Regional Plan and within the growth 
boundary.
Goal LU.5. Encourage compact development principles to achieve efficiencies and open space preservation.
Goal LU.6. Provide for a mix of land uses.
Goal LU.10. Increase the proportion of urban neighborhoods to achieve walkable, compact growth.
Goal LU.18. Develop well designed activity centers and corridors with a variety of employment, business, 
shopping, civic engagement, cultural opportunities, and residential choices.
Goal NH.3. Make available a variety of housing types at different price points, to provide housing opportunity 
for all economic sectors.
Goal T.1. Improve mobility and access throughout the region.
Goal T.2. Improve transportation safety and efficiency for all modes.
Goal T.5. Increase the availability and use of pedestrian infrastructure, including FUTS, as a critical element of 
a safe and livable community.
Goal T.6. Provide for bicycling as a safe and efficient means of transportation and recreation.
Goal T.7. Provide a high-quality, safe, convenient, accessible public transportation system, where feasible, to 
serve as an attractive alternative to single-occupant vehicles.
Goal T.9. Strengthen and support rail service opportunities for the region’s businesses and travelers.

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/2945/The-Plan


DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

28  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

Climate and Equity
Climate change impacts some groups more than others.

Existing advantages and disadvantages 
will be exacerbated by climate change 
stresses and hazards. Public health, housing 
security, and socioeconomic conditions 

may all be impacted by predicted changes in 
weather and migration.  Already, low-income 
residents, communities of color, and tribal nations 
disproportionately experience environmental 
harm and health impacts of pollution. This plan 
incorporates strategies to advance environmental 
justice and social equity while addressing climate 
change.

Considering social equity when addressing climate 
adaptation involves looking at communities’ 
existing disadvantages and ensuring those most 
at risk are protected. For example, communities 

already facing housing insecurity may be 
displaced by climate-induced migration. This 
plan proposes proactively taking action to 
protect communities at risk of displacement. To 
address social equity when implementing climate 
change mitigation strategies, it is necessary to 
consider if the strategy inadvertently creates 
new burdens to disadvantaged groups and 
consider if all communities have opportunities to 
reduce emissions. For example, when expanding 
public transit, it is imperative to ensure public 
transit is financially and physically accessible to 
disadvantaged communities. The “Next Steps” 
section of this plan details steps the City and 
community should take to ensure that these equity 
considerations are integrated throughout the Plan 
implementation process.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  29

Climate Change and Flagstaff
Climate change is a shift in the long-term, average weather pattern. 

When climate changes over thousands of 
years, plants and animals often adapt. 
When climate changes rapidly over 
hundreds of years, drastic changes 

including mass extinctions have occurred. Our 
climate is changing rapidly. Decades of burning 
fossil fuels and other human activities have released 
dangerous levels of heat-trapping gases into the 
atmosphere. These greenhouse gases—carbon 
dioxide, methane, nitrous oxides, and others—are 
driving abrupt changes in our climate.

This section presents the context of climate change 
in Flagstaff, including an overview of anticipated 
climate changes and associated impacts and an 
introduction to the sources of greenhouse gas 
emissions produced by the Flagstaff community. 
More information on anticipated climate changes 
can be found in the Climate Profile for the City of 
Flagstaff.

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/3907/Climate-Profile


DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

30  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

Climate Change Impacts
Climate change threatens to destabilize global weather patterns and ecosystems, impacting Flagstaff 
and  communities globally. Coconino County is already experiencing climate changes, and many of these 
changes are projected to worsen in the future. Key changes include the following:

• Longer and hotter summers
• Difficulty for sensitive 

populations and those 
without air conditioning

• Increased risk of disease or 
illness from mosquitoes and 
other pests

• More rainfall instead of 
snowfall

• Increased flooding of 
infrastructure and buildings 
from more intense rainstorms

• Increased risk of post-wildfire 
floods

• Increased wildfire risk for local 
forests

• Increased damage from 
forest pests due to hotter 
temperatures and drought-
stressed trees

• More severe drought 
conditions as temperatures 
rise

• Lower water quality of 
reservoirs

Hotter 
temperatures

Less 
snowpack

Less healthy 
forests

Drier 
conditions



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  31

Climate Vulnerability Assessment
To better understand the extent to which these climate changes 
will affect Flagstaff, the Plan includes a Flagstaff-specific climate 
vulnerability assessment. The assessment identified key climate-
related risks to Flagstaff’s resources, systems, and populations. This 
section summarizes outcomes from the vulnerability assessment.

What is Climate Vulnerability?
Flagstaff’s vulnerability to climate change is a function of its exposure, sensitivity, and adaptive 
capacity:

 
Flagstaff’s climate vulnerability assessment looked at how key resources and sectors could be 
impacted by identified climate risks:

Whether a resource 
is located in an area 

experiencing climate 
change hazards.

How a resource fares 
when exposed to an 

impact.

The ability of the 
resource to adjust or 

cope with impacts.

VULNERABILITY EXPOSURE SENSITIVITY ADAPTIVE
CAPACITY

...could be affected by these climate 
risks and their associated impacts.

wildfire hotter temperatures

drought flooding

Flagstaff’s climate vulnerability assessment 
looked at how these resources and 
sectors...

Water supply, 
quality, and 

infrastructure 

Public health, 
safety, and 
emergency 

services

Tourism  
and recreation

Land use, 
infrastructure, 
and affordable 

housing 

Forest  
health and 

wildfire



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

32  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

What is at Risk?
Flagstaff’s climate vulnerability assessment ranked the relative climate vulnerability of several resources 
and sectors. The table below summarizes the outcomes from that assessment.

LOW MEDIUM HIGH

..the following populations and systems are at 
varying risk levels in Flagstaff due to climate change:

Within these resources and 
sectors...

Public health, 
safety, and 
emergency 
services

Land use, 
infrastructure, 
and affordable 
housing

Forest health and 
wildfire

Water supply, 
quality, and 
infrastructure

Tourism and 
recreation

People with: 
- Allergies 
- Mental health issues 
- Other diseases

People sensitive to: 
- Poor air quality 
- Heat- and cold- 
   related illness

Regional growth

Summer recreation 
and tourism

- Utilities, buildings,     
public transportation 
- Cost of living 
- Open space

Damage from post-
fire flooding

Water quality

- Wildfires 
 -Pests, invasive species 
- Declining forest health

- Water supply 
- Water infrastructure

Winter recreation 
and tourism



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  33

MEDIUM 
VULNERABILITY

MEDIUM 
VULNERABILITY

LOW 
VULNERABILITY

MEDIUM-LOW 
VULNERABILITY

MEDIUM-LOW 
VULNERABILITY

A longer warm season and more 
intense wildfires may increase 
the risk of some diseases, mental 
illnesses, and respiratory health 
concerns. Emergency response 
systems will need to be ready to 
respond to these risks.

Public Health, Safety, and Emergency Services 
Vulnerability to Climate Change

By 2100, Flagstaff communities are likely to face:

More periods of 
poor air quality 

due to larger and 
more frequent 

wildfires.

More extreme 
heat days 

(>90°F) could 
increase risk 

of heat-related 
illness.

Increased 
exposure to 
allergens is 
possible as 

spring grows 
warmer and 

more dry 
weather 

increases dust.

More frequent 
extreme events 
could increase 
risk of mental 
health issues.

Increased exposure 
to valley fever and 
West Nile virus is 
possible as the 
warm season 

lengthens. Existing 
reponse resources 
may be adequate.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

34  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

MEDIUM 
VULNERABILITY

MEDIUM 
VULNERABILITY

MEDIUM 
VULNERABILITY

MEDIUM-LOW 
VULNERABILITY

As our population continues to grow, 
we may have more people living in 
wildfire- and flood-prone areas despite 
the goals of our regional growth plan. 
Hotter temperatures may stress some 
infrastructure.

Land Use, Infrastructure, and Affordable Housing 
Vulnerability to Climate Change

By 2100, Flagstaff communities are likely to face:

Wildfires and 
hotter, drier 

conditions may 
make healthy, open 
space more difficult 

to sustain.

Greater population 
density is planned 

away from wildfire- 
and flood-prone 
areas, with more 

city parks and open 
space to provide 

shade.

Hotter 
temperatures may 

increase energy 
costs and stress 
infrastructure.

Hotter 
temperatures may 

increase energy 
costs and make 

summer cooling out 
of reach for many 

households.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  35

A longer warm season and drier climate 
are likely to reduce overall forest health, 
lead to more damaging and hazardous 
wildfires and floods, and enable 
worsening pine beetle infestations. Forest 
management and emergency response 
systems will need to be ready to respond 
to these growing threats.

Forest Health and Wildfire 
Vulnerability to Climate Change

By 2100, Flagstaff communities are likely to face:

Overall declines in 
forest health and 
widespread forest 

loss due to wildfires, 
drought, pests, and 

invasive species.

Larger, more 
frequent stand-

replacing 
wildfires.

Larger, more 
frequent flooding 

after wildfires. 
More floods in 

general.

More beetle 
infestations and 
invasive species 
due to warmer, 

drier conditions.

MEDIUM-HIGH 
VULNERABILITY

HIGH 
VULNERABILITY

HIGH 
VULNERABILITY

HIGH 
VULNERABILITY



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

36  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

Our water comes from forests 
at high risk of significant wildfire 
damage. Despite progress in water 
conservation, as our population 
grows, tourism increases, and the 
climate changes, we expect to face 
water shortages despite progress 
in water conservation. Our 
community will need to be ready.

Water Supply, Quality, and Infrastructure 
Vulnerability to Climate Change

By 2100, Flagstaff communities are likely to face:

Reduced water 
availability and 

increased demand are 
expected to accelerate 

the need to develop 
new water supply 

projects.

More wildfire, 
drought, and 

flooding are likely 
to impair water 

quality.

More wildfire and 
flooding is likely 
to significantly 

damage natural and 
human-made water 

infrastructure.

HIGH 
VULNERABILITY

HIGH 
VULNERABILITY

MEDIUM-HIGH 
VULNERABILITY



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  37

Significant losses are expected 
to snow-based tourism and 
recreation as snowpack 
declines. Our businesses and 
services will need to be ready to 
handle a prounounced shift to 
warm-season recreation and 
tourism.

Tourism and Recreation 
Vulnerability to Climate Change

By 2100, Flagstaff communities are likely to face:

Significant 
snowpack loss 

may reduce 
winter recreation 

and tourism.

More wildfire, 
drought, or 

extreme heat may 
temporarily reduce 

recreation and 
tourism in summer, 

spring, and fall.

MEDIUM-HIGH 
VULNERABILITY

MEDIUM-LOW 
VULNERABILITY



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

38  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

Flagstaff’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Activities in Flagstaff release greenhouse gas emissions when fossil 
fuels are burned for transportation and energy, when solid waste 
breaks down, and when water and wastewater are produced and 
treated. 

To avoid the most dangerous impacts of climate change, 
the international community came together to ratify 
the Paris Agreement, which recognizes the need to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions to keep global 

temperature rise below 2 degrees Celsius.1

Flagstaff has committed to meeting the intentions of the 
Paris Agreement. This plan sets an ambitious target to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions by 80% below baseline by 2050. 
To track progress on implementing climate and sustainability 
strategies, Flagstaff has been tracking community-wide 
greenhouse gas emissions since 2009. In 2016, community-
wide emissions were 787,315 metric tons carbon dioxide 
equivalent (MTCO2e). 

1 UNFCCC. “The Paris Agreement.” https://unfccc.int/process-and-
meetings/the-paris-agreement/the-paris-agreement



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  39

6%
Industrial Energy

20%
Commercial Energy

5%
Water and Wastewater

11%
Solid Waste

40%
Transportation and Mobile Sources

1% Process and Fugitive Emissions

Emissions from the transportation 
sector made up 40% of Flagstaff’s 
overall greenhouse gas emissions in 
2016. Local, on-road transportation 
of passengers in residential-owned 
vehicles accounts for the majority 
(98%) of these transportation 
emissions in Flagstaff. 

Energy consumption 
accounts for almost half of 
Flagstaff’s total greenhouse 
gas emissions. These 
emissions come from 
residential, commercial, and 
industrial buildings 
consuming electricity and 
burning natural gas. 

17%
Residential Energy

The treatment and conveyance 
of Flagstaff’s water supply and 
wastewater also emit 
considerable greenhouse gas 
emissions, contributing 5% to 
overall emissions. 

The disposal of solid 
waste contributed 11% 
to Flagstaff’s 2016 
greenhouse gas 
emissions footprint.

WHERE DO OUR EMISSIONS COME FROM?

In 2016, Flagstaff’s greenhouse gas emissions were primarily from 
transportation and energy use, with solid waste, water and wastewater 
treatment, and fugitive emissions (e.g., from leaks) making up small 
portions of Flagstaff’s total inventory. 



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

40  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

Not all emissions are currently reflected in Flagstaff’s inventory 
While Flagstaff’s community inventory accounts for emissions released directly within the city or from 
closely related community activities, consumption-based emissions convey the upstream greenhouse 
gas impacts of consuming household products. Global economic trade results in the U.S. importing 
many of the goods that homes consume. As a result, the U.S. has essentially exported greenhouse gas 
emissions related to manufacturing. Consumption-based emissions inventories approximate upstream 
impacts so individuals can understand how to reduce their personal carbon footprints, taking into account 
the emissions associated with manufacturing and transporting the goods and services they consume. 
The figure below represents an estimated profile of one household’s consumption-based emissions in 
Flagstaff.1 The components of the profile that are currently covered in Flagstaff’s greenhouse gas inventory 
are shown in grey. City of Flagstaff will begin incorporating consumption-based emissions to reflect the 
other components in future updates.

CAR FUEL

VEHICLE MFG

AIR TRAVEL

ELECTRICITY

NATURAL GAS

WATER

CONSTRUCTION

MEAT

DAIRY
PRODUCE
CEREALS

OTHER FOOD

CLOTHING

FURNITURE

OTHER GOODS

SERVICES

Transportation Home Food Goods Services
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

M
TC

O₂
e 

pe
r F

la
gs

ta
ff 

H
ou

se
ho

ld

1  “Average Annual Household Carbon Footprint.” UC Berkeley CoolClimate Network. (2013).



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF     |  41

HOW WILL EMISSIONS CHANGE IN THE FUTURE?
A business-as-usual (BAU) forecast provides an estimate of potential future emissions, assuming that the 
city takes no further action. It considers the influence of external factors on Flagstaff’s emissions, such as 
population growth, changes in the regional electricity fuel mix, and energy demand. 

The business-as-usual forecast for Flagstaff is presented below. Key assumptions for Flagstaff’s business-
as-usual forecast are as follows:

35% forecasted Flagstaff population 
growth rate.1

Residential electricity demand expected 
to grow by 60% by 2030.2

Commercial electricity demand expected 
to grow 50%.3

Industrial electricity demand expected to 
grow 1%.4

Electricity carbon intensity expected to 
change at the same rate as national electricity 
carbon intensity, declining 37% by 2050.5

50% growth in vehicle miles traveled.6

1  “Population Projections.” Arizona Office of Economic Opportunity https://population.az.gov/population-projections
2 “2017 Integrated Resources Plan.” APS. April 2017.
3 Ibid.
4 Ibid.
5 “Annual Energy Outlook 2018. U.S. Energy Information Association. 2018.
6 “Blueprint 2040: Regional Transportation Plan.” Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization. May 2017.



DRAFT

FLAGSTAFF CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN DRAFT

Introduction

42  |     CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046

G
re

en
ho

us
e 

G
as

 E
m

is
si

on
s,

 M
et

ric
 T

on
s

Business-as-usual Emissions: 
34% above 2016 baseline by 2050

2016 Baseline

The forecast estimates that Flagstaff’s overall 
emissions will increase 34% by 2050 compared to a 
2016 baseline—equivalent to a 2% per capita increase  
over that time period. 

This scenario conveys the need for 
ambitious climate action to meet 
the City’s short- and long-term 
emission reduction goals.



DRAFT



DRAFT
 



DRAFT



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT 

 

 

  

 



DRAFT

 

 

 



DRAFT
 



DRAFT

— —

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT

 

 



DRAFT
 

 

 

 



DRAFT
 

 
 

 

  



DRAFT

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT



DRAFT

 

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT



DRAFT

 

The City will advocate for the following state-level actions to help achieve our greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction goals:  

• State legislative and regulatory changes to allow broader implementation of solar in the community 
and decrease the proportion of fossil fuels in the energy mix. 

• A statewide home performance rating system to require home energy performance scores at the 
sale of a home. 

• Allowing cities to require energy benchmarking, to compare the energy performance of buildings 
over time and across the City to inform and motivate performance improvement. 

• Improvements in and expansion of demand-side management programs and incentives. 

• Legislation enabling local governments to establish Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (C-
PACE) programs. 



DRAFT



DRAFT 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT
 

  



DRAFT



DRAFT

 

 
 

 

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT 



DRAFT
 



DRAFT

 

 



DRAFT

The City will advocate for the following state-level actions to help achieve our greenhouse gas 
emissions goals:  

• State-level policies that would encourage more climate-friendly land use policies, including 
inclusionary zoning, transfer of development rights, and tax increment financing. 

• More stringent vehicle emissions inspection requirements. 

• Allowing inclusionary housing, to harness the economic power of the private market to increase the 
supply of affordable housing. 

• Additional state funding for public transit and active transportation systems. 



DRAFT



DRAFT  

 

 

 

 



DRAFT
 

  



DRAFT

 

 

  

 

  

 

 



DRAFT



DRAFT

 

 



DRAFT

The City will advocate for the following state-level actions to help achieve our greenhouse gas 
emissions goals:  

• Allowance of plastic bag bans or fees and a beverage container deposit program. 

• Requirements for access to recycling services at multi-family housing units. 

• Support for materials management initiatives at the local level, such as extended producer 
responsibility or a bottle bill. 

• Extension of producer responsibility at the state and federal levels. 



DRAFT



DRAFT

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT

 

 

 

 



DRAFT

 

 



DRAFT

 

 



DRAFT

 

 

 

 



DRAFT
 

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 

 



DRAFT

 

 



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT
The City Council-appointed Sustainability Commission will provide ongoing citizen oversight by 
focusing on Plan implementation and public engagement. 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



DRAFT

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT



DRAFT
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.portlandoregon.gov/bps/article/531984


DRAFT

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT



DRAFT

 

 



DRAFT



DRAFT 

 

Solid Waste Code Chapter 7-04-001-0010 FEES,

 

 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AZ/Flagstaff/html/Flagstaff07/Flagstaff0704000.html


DRAFT

• 

• 

• 

 

 

• 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• 
 
 

• 
 
 
 

• 
 
 

http://www.energystar.gov/taxcredits
https://www.energy.gov/savings/business-energy-investment-tax-credit-itc
https://www.energy.gov/eere/femp/federal-energy-management-program
https://www.fanniemae.com/multifamily/green-initiative-financing
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/rural-energy-america-program-renewable-energy-systems-energy-efficiency
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/rural-energy-america-program-renewable-energy-systems-energy-efficiency
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/rural-energy-america-program-energy-audit-renewable-energy-development-assistance
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/rural-energy-america-program-energy-audit-renewable-energy-development-assistance
https://www.energy.gov/savings/fha-powersaver-loan-program
https://www.fueleconomy.gov/feg/taxevb.shtml
https://www.fema.gov/hazard-mitigation-assistance
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/programs/financial/ama/?cid=stelprdb1242818
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/programs/financial/?cid=stelprdb1047790
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/national/programs/financial/csp/
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/national/programs/financial/eqip/
https://azdor.gov/tax-credits/renewable-energy-production-tax-credit
https://www.aps.com/en/business/savemoney/by-business-type/Pages/multifamily.aspx
https://www.aps.com/en/residential/savemoneyandenergy/your-options/Pages/home.aspx
https://www.aps.com/en/ourcompany/doingbusinesswithus/constructioncorner/Pages/energy-star-homes-program-for-builders.aspx
https://www.aps.com/en/business/savemoney/businesssolutions/Pages/how-to-apply.aspx?src=applyonline
https://www.kcurveprize.org/
https://www.usdn.org/public/page/5/About


DRAFT
Making progress towards Flagstaff’s ambitious climate action goals is going 
to take more than just action from the City itself—individuals and community 
groups all have a critical role to play as well. Through thoughtful and committed 
actions from all, Flagstaff can become a more resilient, healthier, and more 
equitable city for people to live in and visit for both current and future 
generations. This guide highlights actions that individuals can take to 
reduce their carbon footprint or increase community resilience.

FLAGSTAFF 
COMMUNITY 
CLIMATE 
ACTION 
GUIDE
Setting a 

goal is just 
the first 

step! 



DRAFT

WHICH ACTIONS WILL YOU TRY TAKING?

Reduce my energy useReduce my garbage

Increase the number of trips I make by transit, 
carpooling, walking, or biking.

Try out an electric bike for my commute.

Organize a “walking school-bus” to walk a group 
of kids to school.

Delay my next purchase of a new vehicle, if it’s 
possible to get more life out of my current car. 
When I decide to make a purchase, I’ll investigate 
electric vehicles and hybrids.

Use alternatives to air travel when possible.

Support development that creates vibrant, 
higher density, mixed-use areas to reduce the 
need for driving in Flagstaff.

Get an energy audit to find ways to increase 
energy efficiency at home and at work.

Install energy conserving appliances and 
fixtures, such as on-demand tankless water 
heaters, Energy Star appliances, and LED 
lightbulbs.

Install electric furnaces, water heaters, dryers, 
stoves, and more.

Voice my support for City policies that reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions.

Install solar PV and storage at my home—or sign 
up for the APS Solar Communities program to 
use my roof for solar.

Replace a wood-burning fireplace with gas or 
electric.

Install alternatives to air conditioning when 
renovating my home.

Reduce the amount of food my household wastes.

Compost organic waste in my backyard or 
purchase compost pick-up.

Fix things that are broken instead of buying new.

Use the Hazardous Products Center and bulky 
item pick-up programs to properly dispose of old 
refrigerators, e-waste, and air-conditioning units.

Talk with my contractor about alternatives 
to traditional building demolition, such as 
relocation, deconstruction, and salvage.

Shop locally and support local businesses.

Support efforts to reduce and limit single-use 
disposable plastics.  

Eat more low-carbon foods, such as minimally 
processed foods, fruits, grains, and vegetables.

Encourage the creation of community gardens 
on public and private lands including school 
campuses, City lands, and church properties.

Start a tool lending library in my community.

Conduct a water audit at my home, and replace 
inefficient toilets and fixtures.

Set a goal of reducing my household’s hot water 
use by 15%.

Consider efficient alternatives to traditional 
water heaters, like tankless water heaters, 
electric heat pump water heaters, or solar 
thermal hot water heaters.

Install a rain barrel to harvest rainwater for 
outdoor use.

Replace turf grass with drought tolerant 
landscaping or native plants; install smart 
technology on existing irrigation systems.

Conserve water

Embrace non-car travel

City of Flagstaff 
Community Climate Action Guide



DRAFT

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT

 

 

 

 



DRAFT

 

 
 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



DRAFT

 



Appendices 

https://www.portlandoregon.gov/bps/article/531984
http://flagstaff.az.gov/1732/Climate
https://www.cityofwatsonville.org/DocumentCenter/View/196/Carbon-Fund-Ordinance-PDF
https://www.cityofwatsonville.org/DocumentCenter/View/196/Carbon-Fund-Ordinance-PDF
http://www.energystar.gov/taxcredits
https://www.energy.gov/savings/business-energy-investment-tax-credit-itc
https://www.energy.gov/savings/business-energy-investment-tax-credit-itc
https://www.energy.gov/eere/femp/federal-energy-management-program
https://www.fanniemae.com/multifamily/green-initiative-financing
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/rural-energy-america-program-renewable-energy-systems-energy-efficiency
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/rural-energy-america-program-renewable-energy-systems-energy-efficiency
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/rural-energy-america-program-energy-audit-renewable-energy-development-assistance
https://www.rd.usda.gov/programs-services/rural-energy-america-program-energy-audit-renewable-energy-development-assistance
https://www.energy.gov/savings/fha-powersaver-loan-program
https://www.energy.gov/savings/fha-powersaver-loan-program
https://www.fueleconomy.gov/feg/taxevb.shtml
https://www.fema.gov/hazard-mitigation-assistance
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/programs/financial/ama/?cid=stelprdb1242818
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/programs/financial/ama/?cid=stelprdb1242818
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/programs/financial/?cid=stelprdb1047790
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/national/programs/financial/csp/
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/national/programs/financial/eqip/
https://azdor.gov/tax-credits/renewable-energy-production-tax-credit
https://azdor.gov/tax-credits/renewable-energy-production-tax-credit
https://www.aps.com/en/business/savemoney/by-business-type/Pages/multifamily.aspx
https://www.aps.com/en/business/savemoney/by-business-type/Pages/multifamily.aspx
https://www.aps.com/en/residential/savemoneyandenergy/your-options/Pages/home.aspx
https://www.aps.com/en/residential/savemoneyandenergy/your-options/Pages/home.aspx
https://www.aps.com/en/ourcompany/doingbusinesswithus/constructioncorner/Pages/energy-star-homes-program-for-builders.aspx
https://www.aps.com/en/ourcompany/doingbusinesswithus/constructioncorner/Pages/energy-star-homes-program-for-builders.aspx
https://www.aps.com/en/business/savemoney/businesssolutions/Pages/how-to-apply.aspx?src=applyonline
https://www.aps.com/en/business/savemoney/businesssolutions/Pages/how-to-apply.aspx?src=applyonline


  5.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Nicole Antonopoulos, Sustainability Manager

Date: 09/17/2018

Meeting Date: 09/25/2018

TITLE:
Renewable Energy and Bike Share Update

DESIRED OUTCOME:
This is an informational update on the status of renewable energy development and community bike
share.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
In an effort to support the 2010 Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Resolution and the 2017 goal
to take meaningful climate action and transition municipal operations and the community to 100%
renewable energy, staff will present an update on options for the City to pursue.  Additionally, staff will
provide an update on the six-month pilot dockless bike share pilot program.
 

INFORMATION:
Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
Council Goals:
Take meaningful climate change action.   
 
Regional Plan:
Goal E.1. Increase energy efficiency
Goal E.2. Expand production and use of renewable energy
Goal E&C.1. Proactively improve and maintain the region’s air quality.
Goal E&C.2 Reduce Greenhouse gas emissions
Goal E&C.3 Strengthen community and natural environment resiliency through climate adaptation efforts.
Goal E&C.4. Integrate the best available science into all policies governing the use and conservation of
Flagstaff’s natural resources.
 

Attachments:  Presentation



Renewable 
Energy and Bike 

Share Update
Nicole Antonopoulos

September 25, 2018



Updates Renewable energy

• Energy planning and landscape

• Energy use

• Path forward

Bike share

• Pilot agreement recap

• Data

• Path forward

2



Energy 
Planning 

1. Energy efficiency
2. Retro-commissioning
3. Diversification of energy 

portfolio
a. Reliability 
b. Redundancy

4. Cost stabilization
5. Climate action goals

3



Changing 
Energy 
Landscape? 

1. Wind and solar energy are now 
less expensive resources than 
new natural gas systems, and 
much of existing coal systems

2. Potential changes in Arizona 
energy policy

3. Private business is now the 
largest purchaser of clean 
energy in the country (ahead of 
utilities)

4



Renewable Energy Goals

2010 Renewable Energy Resolution – City operations

• Long-term energy planning which incorporates preparedness for 
future energy needs and protects against rising energy costs

• Renewable energy projects and purchasing combined will meet 
35% by 2020

2017 transition to 100% renewable energy

• City operations

• Flagstaff community

5



Energy Consumption Profile

Electric 
Consumption 

Natural Gas 

Consumption

Renewable Energy 
Generation

City 
FY17: 35,743 MWh*
FY18: 35,837 MWh

Community
CY17: 589,697 MWh

* Megawatt hours (MWh)

City 
FY17: 11,989 MWh
FY18: 11,290 MWh

Community
CY17: 35,435 MWh

City 
FY17: 2,798 MWh

FY18: 1,937 MWh**      

Community
?

** Decrease due to co-generation unit 
at Wildcat going off-line

6



Renewable Energy Options: City 

Electric Natural Gas Policy

1. Energy efficiency
2. Energy purchase 

solicitation
3. Purchase Renewable 

Energy Credits 
(RECs)

4. Bid for renewable 
energy thru APS 
Partners for a 
Sustainable Futures
(Airport and Aquaplex)

1. Energy efficiency
2. Retro-commissioning
3. Purchase Renewable 

Energy Credits (RECs)

1. November energy ballot 
measures

2. Arizona Corporation 
Commission 

3. Arizona Legislative

7



Renewable Energy Options: Community 

Electric Natural Gas Policy

1. Increase programming 
for energy efficiency

2. Develop incentives for 
renewable energy 
installations

3. APS community solar 
program

4. Encourage 
involvement in utility 
programs

1. Increase programming 
for energy efficiency

2. Develop incentives for 
retro-commissioning 
and electrification

1. November energy ballot 
measure                                                  

2. Arizona Corporation 
Commission 

3. Arizona Legislative
- PACE
- Community solar     

8



Path to Increased Renewable Energy

• Issue renewable 
energy 
purchase 
solicitation

• Apply for APS 
Sustainable 
Partners

• Ballot results

• Award 
renewable 
energy 
purchase 
contract

• APS Sustainable 
Partners 
contract

• City budget 
process ends

• City sets 
legislative 
priorities 

• City budget  
begins, request 
funding for 
initiatives

• Renewable 
energy 
developer 
works with APS 
for project 
approval

September 
October

2018

May 
June
2018

November 
December

2018

February 
March 
2019

9



Bike Share 



Bike Share Pilot

Six month pilot agreement ends in October 2018

11

Month Trips Total Distance 
(Miles)

GHG 
Reductions 

(Pounds)

Bikes in 
Circulation
(Average)

April (11-30th) 777 1,380 1,518 166

May 2,228 2,375 2,612 260

June 2,715 2,340 2,574 227

July 2,219 2,418 2,660 186

August 1,553 2,406 2,647 154

September - - - -

Total to Date 9,492 10,919 12,011 199



Bike Share Pilot

Community Survey – Since April 120 Respondents 

12

Question Response Rate

Are you from the Flagstaff 
area or a visitor to town?

93% Live in Flagstaff
2.5% Live in County
4.2% Live out of town

112 people
3 people
5 people

Do you feel bike share is a 
useful transportation option in 
Flagstaff?

68% Yes
11.7% No 
15.8% Not sure

82 people
14 people
19 people

Do you support bike share in 
Flagstaff?

70% Yes
13.3% No 
11.7% Not sure

84 people
16 people
14 people

Do you have any 
recommendations to improve 
bike share in Flagstaff?

Need racks, improve parking, better 
than cars, etc….

78 people



Path Forward Collect Feedback  
• Survey community and businesses
• Transportation partners: NAU, 

NAIPTA, FMPO, and County

Issue solicitation
•Based on feedback and lessons 

learned develop solicitation suited 
to community needs
• Incorporate market transitions in 

bike share sector
13



Thank you.

Questions?



  5.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stacy Saltzburg, City Clerk

Co-Submitter: Kevin Fincel

Date: 09/20/2018

Meeting Date: 09/25/2018

TITLE: 
Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 2018-48:  A resolution of the City Council of the City of
Flagstaff, Arizona authorizing the settlement of the matter of Jaime Lynn Shurts v. City of Flagstaff, et al.,
case No. CV-14-08121-PCT-DLR, currently pending in United States District Court, District of Arizona.

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Read Resolution No. 2018-48 by title only
2) City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2018-48 by title only (if approved above)
3) Adopt Resolution No. 2018-48

Executive Summary:
This litigation stems from the arrest of Ms. Shurts on July 4, 2013, for violation of protective orders that
had been obtained by Ms. Shurts' ex-husband and girlfriend. Ms. Shurts alleges that the arrest was
unlawful and resulted in a deprivation of her civil rights. Ms. Morris is alleging injuries and seeking
damages as a result of the alleged unlawful arrest. 

The City has reached a tentative settlement of this particular litigation, subject to the approval of the City
Council. The tentative settlement and legal advice related thereto will be discussed with the City Council
in executive session.

Financial Impact:
Funding for this settlement is available through the City's applicable insurance.

Policy Impact:
None.

Connection to Council Goal, Regional Plan and/or Team Flagstaff Strategic Plan:
N/A

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No.

Attachments:  Res.2018-48





RESOLUTION NO. 2018-48 

  

A RESOLUTION OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE 

SETTLEMENT OF THE MATTER OF JAIME LYNN SHURTS V. CITY OF 

FLAGSTAFF, ET AL., CASE NO. CV-14-08121-PCT-DLR, CURRENTLY 

PENDING IN UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, DISTRICT OF ARIZONA 

  

  

RECITALS:  

  

WHEREAS, Jaime Lynn Shurts filed a civil lawsuit against the City of Flagstaff, Senior Assistant 

City Attorney Marianne Sullivan, and former City of Flagstaff Police Officer Anthony Ryan seeking 

to recover monetary damages resulting from her arrest on July 4, 2013, which she claims was 

unlawful and resulted in a deprivation of her civil rights;  

  

WHEREAS, the City has decided to resolve the disputed claims in the lawsuit by reaching a 

settlement with Ms. Shurts; and  

  

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to effectuate a settlement of the matter of Jaime 

Lynn Shurts v. City of Flagstaff, et al., United States District Court, District of Arizona, Case No. 

CV-14-08121-PCT-DLR.  

  

  

ENACTMENTS:  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF AS 

FOLLOWS:  

  

SECTION 1.  That the City Council authorizes settlement of the matter of Jaime Lynn Shurts v. 

City of Flagstaff, et al., United States District Court, District of Arizona Case No. CV-14-08121-

PCT-DLR pursuant to the terms discussed in executive session, funding for which will be provided 

through the City’s insurer.   

  

SECTION 2.  That the City Manager and City Attorney are authorized and directed to execute 

such documents and take such other actions as are necessary to carry out the purpose of this 

Resolution.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Flagstaff this 25th day of September 

2018.  

  

  

  

                            

              MAYOR  

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2018-48  PAGE 2 
 

ATTEST:  

  

  

  

   
CITY CLERK  

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

  

  

  

   
CITY ATTORNEY  

  


	Agenda
	Update on Airport Master Plan
	Att1_Airport Master Plan
	Att2_Coffman and Associates Master Plan Presentation
	TITLE_ Climate Action and Adaptation Plan_ Draft Review _1
	Att1_Presentation
	Att2_Climate Plan Draft
	Renewable Energy Update and Bike Share Recap
	Att1_Presentation
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Shurts v. City of Flagstaff, et al. 
	Att1_Res.2018-48

